

## User's Manual

Version 2.3

Congratulations on purchasing the quickest and easiest way to tally, workup and print reports from your timber cruise data - all from the field. We designed the program to be easy to use, affordable and mobile. But best of all its foundation rests on the same proven volume tables as



the trusted Bennett & Peters Timber Inventory tables. *iCruisePro's* simple navigation and ease of use belies the very complicated work being done behind the scenes.

We sure hope you enjoy using the program and that it makes timber cruising more efficient for you.

This manual is NOT intended to teach you to use FileMaker Pro (computer database engine) or FileMaker Go (mobile device database engine), nor the iPhone or iPad - please refer to their owner's manual for that.



# Table of Contents

Installing FileMaker Go:	3
Purchasing iCruisePro:	4
Installing iCruisePro:	5
Main Menu:	6
Job Parameters:	6
Enter/Edit Tally:	8
Cruise Workup:	12
Selected Plots Only:	13
Valuation:	14
Completed Tables:	15
Printing:	15
Jobs Directory:	17
Send Backup File:	17
iCruisePro Updates:	19
Support:	19
Tips and Suggestions:	19

#### Installing FileMaker Go:

The first step in getting ready to use *iCruisePro* is to download and install FileMaker Go. This is a free app from the Apple App store, which you should have an icon for on your device (iPhone/iPad only right now). Tap on **App Store** to open this application. FileMaker Go and *iCruisePro* is currently not available for Android devices.

You will type in a search in the upper right hand corner of the screen for **FileMaker Go** and should see something like this -

Select FileMaker Go 18 and click on the blue Get (or Install) box to the right of the purple FileMaker Go 18 icon.

By tapping the **Get (or Install)** button you will download the FileMaker Go application required to run *iCruisePro*. This is only required one time. From then on, FileMaker Go resides on your mobile device. You can move it to your home screen or an easy place to start the FileMaker Go app from.

If using *iCruisePro* on a computer, you will need to purchase FileMaker Pro from the following link:

https://store.filemaker.com/individuals Install FileMaker Pro on your computer as per their instructions. *This is ONLY required for installing* **iCruisePro** on a computer.

You will also need a pdf reader for your computer. We recommend using Preview on the Mac (already installed on every Mac) and Adobe Reader for Windows at <a href="https://get.adobe.com/reader/">https://get.adobe.com/reader/</a> if needed.



	11:42 AM Mon Mar 2		atl 🗢 🗸 55% 🔳				
	Eirs Y Q Filemaker	٢	Cancel				
	् filemaker.go.18						
	Q filemaker						
	q filemaker.go						
	G filemaker.go.17	Q filemaker.go.17					
	Q. filemaker.pro						
	Q. addendum for filemaker						
	Q alertflag for filemaker.go						
	Q icon pack for filemaker						
	Q tutor for filemaker pro - the basics						



## Purchasing iCruisePro:

When you are ready to purchase *iCruisePro*, you will be sent a Registration file by e-mail (Please use Apple's Mail app) to open and run on the specific device you intend to use *iCruisePro* on. You need to receive the e-mail on the device you intend to run the *iCruisePro* software on or else the program will not run properly. To Open the *iCruisePro* Registration file tap on the link shown in the email which will download the Registration file. Then tap on the 3 dots in the upper right hand corner of the screen and you will see something like this





Tap on the word Export then on the Copy to FileMaker Go 18 icon...



By opening this Registration file you will be asked to read and accept the End User License Agreement (EULA). If you decide not to **Accept** the End User License Agreement (EULA) you will not be able to download and install *iCruisePro*. After reading the EULA you will be asked to fill in your contact information and e-mail the Registration file back to us at *iCruisePro*. We will then send you a link to the *iCruisePro* files to download to your device.

#### Installing *iCruisePro*:

Once we receive your registration file, you will e-mail a link to our download site. Click on the blue link in the body of the e-mail. Please follow the same process to download and Export to FileMaker Go 18 as you did for the Registration file. Please download them in the order they appear in the e-mail we sent you. The **User's Manual** will need to be opened in Preview on the mobile devices.

You may see a progress bar like this as the programs download to your device.



You should now be running *iCruisePro*.

If you have closed *iCruisePro* or FileMaker Go (database engine) you must open FileMaker Go by locating it on one of your device home screens and by tapping on the icon. (When you originally downloaded FileMaker Go from the App Store, it was placed somewhere on your home screen - usually the first available open spot). For simplicity you can drag the FileMaker Go icon to your dock (See your device manual for instructions).





You will then be taken to the *Launch Center* where you should see *iCruisePro* as one of your choices to Open. Tap *iCruisePro* and you should see a Splash Screen then the Main Menu.

#### Main Menu:

The Main Menu is the central location for all of the program functions. You will be able to create a new job, enter/edit tally data, change the job parameters, view and change the species list, workup the cruise, view completed tables and e-mail out a backup file of the current job, as well as Exiting *iCruisePro*. The first thing you will do is tap the **Create New Job** button. This will create a new job and take you to the Job Parameters screen.



#### **Job Parameters:**

You will first go to the Enter Title Information area which will be printed on each report. The first line is the job name which is important so that you can easily recognize that name later on in case you need to add to it or rework the volumes at a later time. Fill in the other title information maybe things like the location (Section, Township and Range), the county or parish, or something similar. You must also put in the **tract acres**. *iCruisePro* needs this info to calculate the volumes and trees. These are the headings that are going to be printed on each report.



If using an iPhone, you may need to turn it to landscape mode (sideways) to view this screen a little larger and see all the menu buttons at the bottom of the screen as the app was designed to run on an iPad.

Enter Title Info	ormation			Stand	Level Data		
TEST				Unit St	and Acres Pin		
Tract Acres (+/-)	40.00	≡ Change I	Report Footers	* Tract Ac	res 🦳 Stand Acres		
Type of I	nventory	Point Samp	Point Sampling - Plots 2				
Point Sam	pling BAI	F 10	DBH	Class Size (	in) 2		
Fixed R	adius	Volume	Table				
Sawimber (1)	0.2	Standard Tons					
Chip & Saw (2)	0.2	Standard Tons -					
Pulpwood (3)	.2	Merchantable Height Tons -					
Pre-Merch (4)	0.01						
		Form Class	Min DBH	Max DBH	Log Lengt		
Pine S	awtimber	80	14	50	-5		
Pine Cl	nip & Saw	80	8	12	-5		
Pine Pulpwood		77	6	24	-5		
Hardwood Sawtimber		75	14	50	-5		
Hardwood I	Pulpwood	77	6	24	-5		
Jeb # 4		Include Sampling	Error in Compreh	ensive Summary	• Yes No		

You then set the other parameters like: type of inventory, minimum and maximum diameters by product. You can also change the Form Class, Basal Area Factor, plot radius (if fixed plots are to be taken), DBH size class (1 or 2 inch classes), volume units for the different products. You can also select to printout sampling error estimates on the

Inter Title Information

Comprehensive Summary.

Intras of Ben Feters		X		
Section 8, 16, 17, 20 ,21 & 4				
St. Helena Parish, Louisian				
July 2010				
Tract Acres (+/-) 511.90			• Tract Act	res 🔿 Stand Ac
Trees of Incontores	Delint Comm	line -	PL	ate 195
Type of Inventory	Point Samp	aing	In	120
Point Sampling BAF	10	DBH (	Class Size (	in) 2
Fixed Radius	Volum	e Table		
Sawimber 0.2 St	andard Tons			
Chip & Saw 0.9	ndard Tons			
Pulpwood 9	eight Tons			
Pre-Merch 01				
	n 01			
Direction the house	Form Class	Min DBH	Max DBH	Log Len
Fille Sawulliber	80	12	50	
Pine Chip & Saw	80	8	10	4
Pine Pulpwood	77	6	24	4
Hardwood Sawtimber	75	14	50	4
Hardwood Pulpwood	77	6	24	4
Job #	Include Samplin	From in Comprehe	nsive Summary	• Yes • 1
1	mendae bamping	, artor in comprehe.	aoire o allillary	
A	Casaina	E Drin		Entor

**Job Parameters** 

Stand Level Data

Enter Title I	nformati	ion			Stan	d Level Data			
LA005-0261									
Tract Acres (+	/-)				Tract Ac	res. • Stand Acres			
Туре о	f Invente	ory	Point Sampl	ing		ts 8			
Point Sa	muling	RAE	10	DRH	Cl Sim i	in) 2			
Fount Sa	mpning i	DAF	10	рви	Size	(III) 2			
Fixed	Radius		Volume	Table 🔶					
Sawimber	0.2	Star	Standard Tons						
Chip & Saw	0.2	Star	Standard Tons						
Pulpwood	0.1	Mer	Merchantable Height Tons *						
Pre-Merch	0.01								
		F	orm Class	Min DBH	Max DBH	Log Length			
Pin	e Sawtimb	ber	80	12	50	-5			
Pine	Chip & S	aw	80	8	10	-5			
Pir	ne Pulpwo	od	77	6	24	-5			
Hardwoo	d Sawtimł	ber	75	12	50	-5			
Hardwoo	od Pulpwo	24	-5						
			Include Sampling	Error in Compreh	ensive Summary	• Yes No			
Job #									
Job # 1									



If you have several stands to cruise in the same inventory, you

can list each stand and its acres in the Stand Acres area and *iCruisePro* will calculate the total volumes based on the acres and plots taken within each stand. You must select the Stand Acres radio button below the Stand Level Data area of the screen. You must also enter the Unit, Stand and Acres in the Stand Level Data area of the Parameters screen.

By tapping the **Set Default** button you are able to use the current **Job Parameter** settings as the default for each new job you create (Volume units, cruise type, BAF, etc).



You may also need to click on the Change Report Footers button to enter the info you want printed at the bottom of each report page (*iCruisePro* uses the information you entered in the iCruisePro Registration File as a default).

Once you finish changing the necessary parameters, you are ready to proceed to the **Enter/Edit Tally** data area and begin entering data.

Tap the **Enter Tally** button and you will be taken to the Tally screen

Lands of Ben Peters     00     00     00     00     00     00       Section 8, 16, 17, 20, 21 k 4∪C; T4S, R4E     0     00     00     00     00       Sub Heina Parish     Louisian     0     00 </th <th colspan="8">Enter Title Information</th> <th>d Le</th> <th>vel Data</th>	Enter Title Information								d Le	vel Data
Section 8, 16, 17, 20, 21, 24, 8, 46, 7, 45, 8, 46     Image: Constant 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10,	ands of Ben F		× [	-cantu	<i>A</i>					
St. Heien Parish, Louisaria       Image: Strain Parish, Louisaria       <	ection 8, 16, 1									
July 2010 Tract Acres (+/-) 511-9  Type of Inventory Point Sampling F	St. Helena Parish, Louisiana									
Image Areas (+/-)         511-90         Point Sampling         Point Sampl	aly 2010									
Type of Inventory     Paint Sampling     Paint Sam	act Acres (+/-	•) 511.90	)					• Tract Ac	res O	Stand Acres
Point Sarrely 10         DBH Class Size (In 1996)         2           Time Free Free Free Free Free Free Free Fr	Type of	Point	Sampli	ng	٣	Pl	ots	125		
Hadius         Volume Table         Image: State	Point Sar	BAF	10		DB	H Cl	ass Size (	in)	2	
Sawimber         0.2         Start Tons         Start Tons           Chip 8x         0.2         Start Tons         Start Tons           Pulpword         0.1         Verture         Start Tons           Pro-Mord         80         10         Start Tons           Prime Support         75         64         24           Hardwood Start Tons         77         66         24	Fixed	Radius		Vo	lume	Table				
Chip & Sam         Chip & Sam	Sawimber	0.2	Star	Standard Tons						
Purphonol         O.1         Marcharland Freight Towns         Marcharland Freight Towns           Pre-Mo         O.0         Minutes         Minutes         Lange Towns           Brie Further         S0         O.0         S0.0         Lange Towns         Lange Towns           Brie Further         S0         S0.0         S0.0         Minutes         Lange Towns           Brie Further         S0.7         G0.0         G0.0         Minutes         Minutes           Brie Further         S0.7         G0.0         G0.0         Minutes         Minutes	hip & Saw	0.2	Star	Standard Tons						
Pre-Merche         0.01         Min DBH         Max DBH         Log Leg           Pine Sawtimber         80         12         500         12           Pine Dip & Saw         80         8         10         12         12           Pine Pubpood         707         6         44         12         12           Hardwood Pubpood         77         6         24         12         12	Pulpwood	0.1	Mer	Merchantable Height Tons						
Image: Normal state	Pre-Merch	0.01								
Pine Sawtimber         80         12         50           Pine Chip & Saw         80         8         10           Pine Pulpwood         77         6         24           Hardwood Switimber         75         14         50           Hardwood Pulpwood         77         6         24			F	orm Cl	ass	Min DBI	H N	Iax DBH	Los	z Lengt
Pine Chip & Saw         80         8         10           Pine Pulpwood         77         6         24           Hardwood Sawtimber         75         14         50           Hardwood Pulpwood         77         6         24	Pine	Sawtiml	per	8	0	12	Т	50	Ľ	-5
Pine Pulpwood         77         6         24           Hardwood Sawtimber         75         14         50           Hardwood Pulpwood         77         6         24	Pine (	Chip & S	aw	8	0	8		10		-5
Hardwood Sawtimber     75     14     50       Hardwood Pulpwood     77     6     24	Pine	e Pulpwo	od	7	7	6		24		-5
Hardwood Pulpwood 77 6 24	Hardwood	Sawtiml	ber	7	5	14		50		-5
	Hardwood	i Pulpwo	od	7	7	6		24		.5
Job s Include Sampling Error in Comprehensive Summary Yes	Job #		1	include Sa	mpling 1	Error in Comp	rehensi	ive Summary	• Y	'es 🔍 No
🖌 Main Menu 💽 Species 🛑 Print 🗾 Ente	Main Menu			Species		Ō	Print			Enter Ta

## Enter/Edit Tally:

Once you have created a new job - if you are not adding to an existing job (like from the previous day's tally), you will need to tap the **Create New Plot** button. By clicking on this button *iCruisePro* creates a new **plot** ready for you to enter the plot number, which is the only field that is absolutely required for the plot data portion of the screen, then you can type in the unit,



stand and acres if needed. You may or may not want to fill in the site, origin, age information.





After at least entering the plot number you should be able to tap on the button that looks like a return arrow which will goto the next field of data. This **Next** button is located at the bottom right of the numeric keypad that shows up at the bottom of the screen when you tap in a field to enter data. By tapping this button you will be taken to the next available field for entering data.



You are now ready to start entering trees on the plot. Tap just below the word Product. There are 4 codes for products. They are as follows:

- 1 Sawtimber
- 2 Chip & Saw
- 3 Pulpwood
- 4 Premerchantable

When tabbing to the next field of data, the iPad and iPhone may have a slight delay. Please give it just a split second longer than you would normally and it will be able to accept your entries. The newer the iPad/iPhone the quicker the response.

Then you can hit the **Next** button to go to the next field of data, which is Species. You have 60 species to choose from. You can access them by pressing the **View Species List** button, which is located just below the plot information. You can change the species to



•••••• AT&T ??

what ever you like as long as **the first 10 are pine** and the remainder(11-60) are for hardwood species. You can also tap the **Set DEFAULT** button to make your changes the new default species list. To get back to the Tally

screen just tap on the Enter Tally button on the bottom of the screen.

Ø					Q						
Landowne	Landowner Name: Test job Plot Data										
	Plot I	nformati	ion		Site I	Index Readings	Noti	15			
1	Unit 1	Sta	nd Sta	nd Acres	Tree1	Species Age Height					
Site	Orioin	Ace	Boush	SI	Tree2						
1	2	16	2	2	Tree3				Plot		
_											
View Speci	les List	Due		0	Tree	e Data	Heleht	6 <b>7</b>			
Iree	.#	Pro	auct	Spec	cles	UBH	Height	#Trees			
1			1		3	14	2.5	1	×		
2			2		3	10	2	1			
3			4		2	4		3			
4			3	1	2	6	1.5	1			
5			3		3	6		2			
Previou	is Next	≛				0 >		±	Done		
			7		8	9	$\otimes$				
			4		5	6	±				
			1		2	3	4				
				0							

7:33 PM

Hit the **Next** button again and go to the

DBH field and enter it. Hit the **Next** button again to enter the log height of the tree. *iCruisePro* is set to tally heights in logs - 16ft (1) and half logs - 8ft (.5). Hit the **Next** button and enter the number of trees of the same Product, Species, DBH and Height. It will default to 1 tree if you do not have multiple trees within the same categories. There is no limit

•000 AT&T 🗇		10:45 AM		1 51% 🔳
26 Set DEFAULT	SI	ist		
1 Pine	21	Overcup Oak	41	Poplar
2 Loblolly Pi	ne 22	Scrub Oak	42	Bay
3 Slash Pine	23	Gum	43	Cherry
4 Longleaf P	ine 24	Gum	44	Boxelder
5 Shortleaf P	ine 25	Tupelo Gum	45	Persimmon
6 Spruce Pin	e 26	Blackgum	46	Basswood
7 Virginia Pi	ne 27	Elm	47	Chinaberry
8 Pond Pine	28	Soft Elm	48	Cedar
9 Pine Cull	29	Hard Elm	49	Birch
10 Poles & Pil	ing 30	Ash	50	Ironwood
11 Oak	31	Maple	51	Pecan
12 Red Oak	32	Cypress	52	Sweet Pecan
13 So. Red Oa	ık 33	Cottonwood	53	Bitter Pecan
14 Cherrybark	Oak 34	Willow	54	Pop-Bay-Mag
15 Water Oak	35	Hickory	55	Walnut
16 Willow Oa	k 36	Sycamore	56	Soft Hardwood
17 Nuttall Oal	37	Hackberry	57	Hard Hardwood
18 Shummard	Oak 38	Locust	58	Hardwood
19 White Oak	39	Beech	59	Misc
20 Post Oak	40	Magnolia	60	Hwd Cull
PINE SPECIE	S ONLY (all other number	ers for hardwood sp	ecies)	
🏠 Main Menu	Timber Pr	ices	Print	Dob Parameters
		$\langle 0 \rangle$		+ - 41

to the number of trees you can enter, although the program may turn that entry Red if it seems to be an unreasonably high number calculated on the basal area of the trees.

••••• AT&T	+	7:33 PM									
0					iCi	ruisePr	• •				Q
Landowne	er Nami	: Test job			Pl	ot Data					
Plot	Plo	t Informati	on nd Stan	d Acres	Sib	e Index R	adings		Notes		
1	1	2			Tree1					- 10	
Site	Origin	Age	Brush	SI	Tree2					Cres	the New
1	2	16	2	2	Tree3						Plot
View Spec	ies List	1			Tre	ee Data					1
Tree	0.8	Pro	duct	Spec	ies	D	BH	Heig	ht	#Trees	
1			1	:	3	1	4	2.5		1	×
2			2	:	3	1	0	2		1	
3		4		:	2		4			3	
4		3		3 12			6 1.			1	
5		3		3 3			6			2	
Previou	Previous Next 🚔					0				±	Done
			7		8		9	$\otimes$			
			4		5		6	±			
	1			2		3	L.				
	0			0			•				

Tap on the blue **Done** button when the plot is complete and the numeric keypad disappears.

There is a **Red X** on the very right side of the screen (on the computer version it shows a Grey X). As you are entering a tree you will notice that line of data shows a light blue background - which tells you that record (or tree) is active. If you tap on the **Red X** *iCruisePro* will ask you *"Are you sure you want to delete the selected tree"*. If you tap on **Yes** the tree is

	Tre	e Data			
Product	Species	DBH	Height	#Trees	_
3	1	×			
Are yo	1				
c	1				

deleted. If you hit the **Red X** by mistake you can just tap the **Cancel** button and the tree is **NOT** deleted.

If you need to know what the limiting distance is for your variable or fixed radius plot that you set up in the Job Parameters, you can select the tree you have a question about and tap on the orange *i* button (located just above the Red X)and



you will see something like the following:



Just tap **OK** to return to tally.

You can also capture the GPS location for each plot as well as a photograph of the plot. Tap the **Get GPS Location** button towards the bottom left of the tally screen to get GPS readings. If you use the GPS on your device you could suffer in battery life. We recommend you use an external bluetooth GPS device, if possible, such as the **Bad Elf Surveyor** to give you more

accurate readings and significantly extend the battery life of your iPhone or iPad. Even with sub-meter GPS units, the best accuracy reading that the screen will show is 16.4 ft. That is a function of the database engine and not the GPS device or *iCruisePro*. The computer version will not return a GPS location - you must use an iPad/iPhone will cell enable service (or a bluetooth GPS device) to get GPS coordinates.

					Plot	Data				
	Plot I	nformatio	on		Site Ir	ndex Readings	Device		_	
PM 127	1	a I	2	Std Apres	Sr Tree1	secies Age Height	Computer		Ð	
Site	Origin	Age	Brush	8	Tree2		Taken By	Crea	te New	
1	2	25	3	2	Tree3				100	
Goto Species	List				Tree	Data				i
Tree #		Р	roduct	Spe	icles	DBH	Height	#Trees		
1			1		2	14	2.5	1		×
2			3		2	12	3.5	1		
3			1		2	12	2.5	1		
4			2		2	8	1.5	1		
5			1		2	12	3	1		
6			2		2	10	2	1		
7			1		2	12	2.5	1		
8			3		2	10	3	1		
9			1		2	14	3	1		
									Ŧ	
					Note	15				
beetle a	ictivity j	just off th	e ploti					View	Photo	
Main Me	inu	<	First	< Pr	evious	> Next	> Las	t ÖP	arame	ters

(Computer Screen view)

(iPad Screen view)

Once you have finished with that plot you can tap the **Create New Plot** button again and goto the next plot. When you are finished with the cruise, you can tap the **Main Menu** button at the bottom of the screen. You are now ready to calculate the cruise volumes.



#### **Cruise Workup:**

	10:50 AM	* 91%							
	MAIN MENU 4684								
Enter / Edi		Display / Print							
Create New Jol		Conprehensive Summary 🛛 👻							
Job Directory		Completed Tables 🗎							
Job Parameter	0 8	end Backup via email ≅							
Enter / Edit Tal	ly ≤ E	aport Raw Tally Data 🖩							
Species List		EXIT							
$\langle \rangle \doteq$		<u>+</u> Done							
Sawtimbe	er Table								
Chip & Sa	w Table								
Pulpwood	d Table								
Compreh	ensive Su	ummary 🗸							
Valuation	Table								
A-1	<b>NI-1- A</b>								

Once your tally has been entered and checked, you will be able to **Workup Inventory.** By tapping this button from the **Main Menu**, the program first checks to see if it sees any problem entries in your tally. If there are questionable entries, you will be presented with a dialog box that asks you if you want to go back and revisit those or just continue to the workup process. If you tap on **Display Out of Range Plots**, you will be taken to just the plots that have the potential out of range data and you can edit those. They show up with a **Red** background. Just use the **Next** button at the bottom of the screen to goto the



••••• AT&T 1	÷				\$	:02 AM		* 41	8% <b>a</b> D
0					iCn	uisePro 🔹			Q
		Allied Deve	lopment		Ple	ot Data			
Plot	Plot I	nformation Stand	Stand	Acres	Site	Index Readings	Notes		
19	8	82	1	9	Tree1	opecies Age neight	HP	6	
Site	Origin	Age I	Brush	SI	Tree2			Greate	New
2					Tree3			Pi	2
	_	_	_		-	-			
View Specie	is List	Deed		Casal	Tre	e Data	Height	ATrees	
Iree	*	Produ		Speci	es .	40	<u>neight</u>	#Trees	A
- T		3		30	5	12	2		
2		з		30	6	10	2	1	
3		1		13	3	26	2.5	1	
4		3		23	3	10	2	100	
5		1		1	5	62	2	1	
6		1		19	9	12	1.5	1	
7		1		1	5	18	2	1	
8		1		13	2	14	2	1	
9		1		1	5	20	2	1	Ŧ
Get GP:	S Location			т	O ske Photo	, View	v Photo	Device iPad Taken B	v
Acc. Bennett & Peb	ers, Inc.		odified By	ronnie		Modified 9/16/20	015 12:40:30 PM	kr &F Resource Manageme	int, LLC
Mair Men	า เน	۲.	irst	< Р	reviou	us 🔿 Nei	xt 📏 L	ast 🏚 Pa	ram

next plot with these out of

range entries. Hopefully you catch these kinds of entries while entering the tally data, but if you miss them this gives you another chance to edit them. Once all out of range entries have been addressed you can then goto the **Main Menu** and tap on the **Workup Inventory** button again.

*iCruisePro* can workup estimates from various volume tables and formulas. These are set in the Job Parameters and contain most of the standard volume units we use in the South.

These volume tables are normally set when creating a new job, but can be changed at any time and the user will need to **Workup Inventory** again if they are changed. Depending on the speed of

the mobile device and the total number of plots you are working up, this process could take from a few seconds to several minutes.



## **Selected Plots Only:**

Version 2.3 allows for workup of select plots from an existing job. Once you have the job you want to workup only **Selected Plots** from loaded into the Current Job, then just select the **Selected Plots Only** option from the **Workup Inventory** button in the **Main Menu.** You will presented with a dialog box telling you that the current job needs to be backed up if you have not done so. The new job with the selected points will now be the current job. This will actually create a temporary job with the plot number you select to workup. You will see another dialog box asking you to identify which plots you want to use for this new job/tract. Enter





each set of

plot numbers you want included in the new job. Keep entering plots until you have listed all plots for the new job and then you can hit the Finish button to create the new job with just those selected plots in it. You should then see a dialog box saying the new job has been created. You will be brought to the **Job Parameters** 

screen to rename the job or tract - since it will have the same job name as you started with

"<Selected Plots>" added at the end of the original job name. Change this to better describe the new tract and if needed make sure to change the ACRES too.

(You will still need to goto the **Job Directory** and tell it to **Backup the Current Job** that you just created with the Selected Plots - IF you want to save the new job. You can then go back to the **Job Directory** and click on the original job (with all the plots) and from the bottom left, tell iCruisePro to **Open Selected Job.** 

Set DEFAULT	J	ob Parameters
Enter Title Inf	formation	
Lands of Pell E	nterprises <sel< td=""><td>ect plots&gt;</td></sel<>	ect plots>
Unit 301		
Lamar County,	MS	
Prelim TEST	•	
Tract Acres (+/-)	) 201.78	∷≣ Change Report Footers

Then you can goto **Workup Inventory** again and select the **Selected Plots Only** option to workup a different acreage and plots from the original job

Tap on the **OK** button to have *iCruisePro* produce your reports. On the computer version you will not see the **Calculating results** dialog box.



••• AT&T *	s:s iCrui	1PM sePro ≁	* 68% <b>=</b> D Q
	MAIN	MENU	(i) About
Ente	er / Edit	Display	/ Print
Create	New Job 🗹	ALL Tab	les 🔻
Job	Calculati This may take a moment	ng results . Do you wish to continue?	oles 🖻
Job Par	Cancel	ок и васкир	via email 🖾
Enter / 1	Edit Tally 🗵	Export Raw T	ally Data 🔳
Speci	es List ≣	EXI	IT
Versen 1.2	iCrui	sePro	<b>(F)</b>
Previous Next		$\rightarrow$	± Done

The Processing Report screen comes up while *iCruisePro* is producing the reports.

#### Valuation:

By going to the species list, you can assign values to each species and product by selecting Timber Prices from the bottom menu. Tap on **Timber Prices** and you will be brought to a pricing screen where you can tap **Set General Prices** for pine and hardwood species. After setting the **General Species Prices**, you can go in and change any

Set DEI	FAULT	Sp	ecies List		
1	Pine	21	Overcup Oak	41	Poplar
2	Loblolly Pine	22	Scrub Oak	42	Bay
3	Slash Pine	23	Gum	43	Cherry
4	Longleaf Pine	24	Gum	44	Boxelder
5	Shortleaf Pine	25	Tupelo Gum	45	Persimmon
6	Spruce Pine	26	Blackgum	46	Basswood
Â١	/lain Menu	Timber f	Prices	Print	Dob Parame
			$\langle \circ \rangle$		±

Set Gene	o ral Prices	Fimber Prices		\$25.00
No.	Species	Pine Prices	& Saw	Pulpwood
1	Pine	Pine Sawtimber	4.00	\$8.00
2	Loblolly Pine	Ding Chip & Saw	4.00	\$8.00
3	Slash Pine	Phile Chip & Saw	4.00	\$8.00
4	Longleaf Pine	Pine Pulpwood	4.00	\$8.00
5	Shortleaf Pine		4.00	\$8.00
6	Spruce Pine		4.00	\$8.00
A Main I	Menu S	peci ir	nt	Valuation
		$\langle \circ \rangle$		±

individual prices. Once you have assigned all prices, you will need to go back and workup the job again (just the Valuation Table) and you can goto the **Completed Tables** button on the **Main Menu** to see the **Valuation** table. If you change species names after setting the prices the original price shows up in the new species - so you may have to change that new species price if necessary.

#### **Completed Tables:**



Once the workup calculations are complete you will see a dialog box saying **Finished** - just tap on **OK** and then tap on the **Completed Tables** button in the **Main Menu** and select the report you wish to view. Currently *iCruisePro* has a Sawtimber, Chip & Saw, Pulpwood, Comprehensive and Valuation tables available. If for some reason you have not yet worked up the table, you will prompted to do so at this time. (Also, if you go into the tally and change a tree entry or change the volume tables you will need to **Workup Inventory** again.) The table will be shown on screen. You can zoom in and out by the normal iPhone/iPad gestures (pinching zooms in) or you can double tap the screen to zoom in and out. Refer to your device's user's manual for specifics on these gestures.

You can then choose to e-mail the file directly to the client, mill, office or anyone you choose. *You MUST have a cell enabled device to be able to e-mail out reports from the field.* If not, you can still e-mail the reports once you get to a Wifi signal and your device has Wifi turned on. You need to just tap on the blue outlined box with an upward pointing arrow (Apple's **Share** 

one					c	Chip a	and S	aw						
Fimber Invents Allied Develops Soctions 21, 22, Allen Parish, Lo Soptamber 2015 Acres (+/+): 1,13	ory ment - ALL 26, 27, 28, vaisiana 5 80.2	STANDS 33 & 34;	16N, R7W											
					сы	ip & Sav Sta	r (Volume vdard Tox	& Trees	,					
Species		8	39	12	14	16	18	20	22	24	26	28+	Totals	Per Acre
Loble Ity Pine	Folume	777.2	1,716.8	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	2,494.0	2.11
	Trea	3,242	4,224	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	7,457	6.33
Slash Pinc	Folume	458.5	731.2	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.9		0.0	3,293	2.79
latal Pine	Drees	4,979	5,751	0	0	0			0	0.0	0.0	0	10,760	9.12
														_
Grand Totals	Fidema	1,235.6	2,448.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	3,683.6	3.12

button). This will take you to a screen that lets you choose to e-mail or text the file to anyone you want. Just type in the recipient name and tap the blue **Send** button in the upper right hand corner of the e-mail screen. You will then be taken back to the report you just e-mailed out and you can tap the blue **Done** button in the top right corner of the screen. This will bring you back to the **Main Menu**. If you do not see the blue **Done** button then tap anywhere on the report screen and it will show up. If at any time you do not see the blue **Done** button or the Apple **Share** button, you should be able to simply tap anywhere on the printout area to view them. If you want to view or e-mail a different report, just select that from the same **Completed Tables** button and follow the same steps as outlined above. You will need to e-mail each report separately.

## **Printing:**

Once a job has been worked up you can easily print the reports. If you have a mobile device you can actually print directly from that iPhone or iPad to almost any Wi-fi enabled printer. Most printers produced within the last several years support this feature. Similar to the process to e-

mail the file, you will view the completed table you want to print and tap on the **Share** button. You will then see this screen and tap on the **Print** button.



Cancel	Printer Options	Print
Gunder	rinke options	
Printer	HP Officejet Pro 8620	[A4D602] >
1 Сору		- +
Options	Single	-sided, Color
The printer is lov		
	Table Texation Texator Texat	
	Number         Num         Num         Number	
	Interfaces         OPP 100         D1         D10         D1         D         D1         D1 <thd1< th="">         D1         D1</thd1<>	
	Andreas and Andreas Andrea	
	Re R Manada Andre 1998 Page 1	

Select any AirPrint available printer then tap the blue **Print** button at the top right of the window and your table will send the current report to that printer.

If you are using a computer, your reports, which are in pdf format, will be printed like any normal pdf file. Click on the **Completed Table** button and select the file you wish to print.

#### **Jobs Directory:**

From the **Main Menu** you can tap the **Jobs Directory** button and you will see the following screen. From here you can manage all of your jobs.

You can **Backup Current Job** which is **highly** recommended when the cruise is complete or even in the middle of a cruise. You can backup the data as frequently as you want. Just remember that it will replace anything in the current job backup.

You can also load a previous cruise into *iCruisePro* if needed. If you started a cruise last week, then backed it up at the end of the day, then had to start a different cruise for some reason (created a new job) and then finished it and printed out your reports and backed it up, you could easily read back in the first cruise and continue taking plots on it. You will just select the cruise you want to read in by tapping on that cruise (it will then show a light blue background indicating it is selected) in the window showing all the cruises on that device, then tap the **Open Selected Job** button at the bottom left of that window. **This will Replace the current job you have in** 

nt Job: de of Pop Potore	Backup Current Job
us of dell reters	Send Job Data via email
Job Name	Date Acres
Liberty Estate (4)	9/24/2015 40.0
Berringer Trust (2)	9/23/2015 133.7
Lands of Ben Peters (1)	8/17/2015 511.9
Open Selected Job Delete Selected Job	Import Data from iCruisePro Backup

iCruisePro. The current job will not be backed up

automatically. You will be presented with a dialog box to let you know that if you want or need to back it up, you will need to do so before you tap **Open Selected Job**. You will notice the cruises are sorted in descending order by the date they were **worked up** and NOT by the name of the cruise. Once the intended cruise is loaded into *iCruisePro* you can add to the plots, or just re-workup the data with different volume units or just view the reports from the last time it was worked up.

#### Send Backup File:

*iCruisePro* allows you to send a Backup file by email to anyone you choose. From the Jobs Directory, tap the **Send Job Data via e-mail** button. Please remember you need to a cell activated device to send e-mail from the field. You can e-mail the backup file from anywhere you have a Wifi signal as well. *iCruisePro* uses Apple's Mail app to send these emails.

	Jobs Di	rectory		
ent Job: ds of Ben Peters			Backup	Current Job
Job Nan	10		ate	Acres
Liberty Estate (4)		9/24	/2015	40.0
Berringer Trust (2)		9/23	/2015	133.7
Lands of Ben Peters (1	)	8/17	/2015	511.9
S Open Selected Job De	😣 elete Selected Job	ٹ Import Data fro iCruisePro Back	up Crea	🕀 ate New Job
os emailed to : info@icruise	pro.com			
🕋 Main Menu	Ċ R	efresh	¢	Job Paramet



This will first backup the current job and then show you a new screen to choose to either **Send e-mail** or **Cancel**.

If you choose to **Cancel**, the e-mail will not be sent and you go back to the **Main Menu**.

If you do want to send the backup file via e-mail, then the screen shows you who the default recipient is, but you can change who to e-mail it to by just clicking on the default address and changing the e-mail address. You also have the option to change or add as many other recipients as need when you are taken to the e-mail screen after tapping the **Send email** button.

Back to Dropbox	10:44 AM	* 87% 💳
Cancel	Berringer Trust - 9/24/2015	Send
To: ronnie@efresmgt.c	om	
Cc/Bcc, From: ronnie@e	fresmgt.com	
Subject: Berringer Trus	t - 9/24/2015	
CruiseProkup.fmp12		
onnie Edmonds		
E & F Resource Mana	gement, LLC	
6854 Cold Harbour	Ave.	
Baton Rouge, LA. 708	317	
225-921-3613		

When you have all of your e-mail recipients listed. you will then tap the blue **Send** button to send out the backup file via e-mail.

#### iCruisePro Updates:

We are constantly striving to make *iCruisePro* easier to use while adding more features. We will be sending out update notifications to all registered users of the program. Please refer to your notification e-mail to get the link to the latest version available for your license. The current version you are running is located at the bottom left in the Main Menu. Just remember you will need to **backup** your current data in the **Jobs Directory** before replacing the updated *iCruisePro* software.

#### Support:

*iCruisePro* has **free** support primarily via e-mail for registered users for 90 days after the purchase date. After 90 days we offer support on an hourly rate basis of **\$90/hour** with a 30 minute minimum. You are encouraged to visit our website where you can view tutorial videos for various parts of the program. We can be reached at <a href="mailto:support@icruisepro.com">support@icruisepro.com</a>.

We can also provide training for *iCruisePro* in certain cases.

Although the Apple iPhone and iPad are pretty durable devices, they are not waterproof and we highly recommend purchasing a waterproof case for you mobile device. All it takes is a quick storm to come up or an accidental drop of the device into a creek or even a mud hole and it may be rendered unusable.

We welcome any comments or suggestions and appreciate your patronage.

## Tips and Suggestions:

Here are some things you can do to save battery life on your iPad or iPhone:

- Always make sure to fully charge your device before going into the field.
- Quit all other open applications see your device user's manual on how to quit all open apps.
- Use Airplane Mode when possible this temporarily disables the GPS on your device and will not allow cell service.
- If you need to use GPS use an external bluetooth GPS device keep the device in Airplane mode but turn on only bluetooth.
- Carry an external battery that can connect to your device and when you stop to take a break connect it to start charging the device.
- Always click the off button on your device when not taking a plot. Just leaving the device screen on will reduce battery life.
- If possible use a magnetic cover for the iPad which automatically turns off the screen when you close the cover.

#### Other tips:

- Always back up your current job before starting a new job if you want to save any changes you have made since the last backup.
- Check to make sure there are no fields flagged with a Red background after entering each tree.
- Always use some type of waterproof case for your device.
- Use an optional stylus (from Walmart, Best Buy, Office Depot, etc.) if you have trouble with touch keypads on mobile devices.

- Backup your data frequently and e-mail out your backup at least once a day.
- E-mail out your reports when you work them up in the field.
- Always re-workup report tables if you make a change to any acres, tree, volume table or valuation selection since the last workup.
- Be careful of using insect repellant on the screens of the iPad and iPhone as well as their cases.